
 

 

 

Rescheduled Regular Meeting of the Board of 

Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Tuesday, December 06, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation given by Director Brewer  

Pledge of Allegiance given by District Court Clerk Karen Reed 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

Please fill out a Citizen Communication Card with your name and contact information for the 

City Clerk's records. 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   The Board of Directors cannot respond to citizens’ concerns during this time. 

Be respectful of the Board of Directors, city staff, and the public by refraining from abusive 

conduct, personal charges, or verbal attacks. 

PRESENTATION 

1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (ADMIN)  

CONSENT 

2. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting November 21, 2022.  (CCD) City Clerk 

Heather Soyars 

3. Adopt a Resolution approving the reimbursement of $22,000.00 to the Texarkana Regional 

Airport from American Rescue Act Funds. (FIN) Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson 

REGULAR 

4. Adopt an Ordinance authorizing the issuance and sale of a General Revenues Note, Series 

2022, by the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, in the principal amount of $650,000. (FIN) Finance 

Director TyRhonda Henderson  



 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, December 19, 2022 

ADJOURN 

 

City Calendar 

Celebration of the Feast of Our Lady of Guadalupe - Sunday, December 11th - 12PM - 1PM 

Santa Sprint - Saturday, December 17th - 8AM - 10AM 

City Hall Closed - Christmas Holiday - Friday, December 23rd & Monday December 26th 

City Hall Closed - New Year Holiday - Friday December 30th & Monday January 2nd 

City Hall Closed - Martin Luther King Day - Monday, January 16th 

Mardi Gras Parade - Saturday, February 18th - 4PM - 6PM 

Run the Line - Sunday, February 19th - 7AM - 12:30PM 

 

 Texarkana Rec Center Calendar 

Ageless Grace - Mondays – 2PM – 3PM 

Gym Open - Mondays, Wednesdays & Fridays – 8AM - 7PM & Saturdays - 8AM – Noon 

Dance Fitness - Tuesdays - 6PM & Saturdays - 11AM 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service 

Awards. (ADMIN)  

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Presentation of employee service awards. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employee Service Awards: 

 

 

Shannon M. Fannin TWU 5 years 

Scott Cupp TWU 20 years 

Justicia Magsalay Bi-State                  

Building Maintenance 

5 years  

 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: None 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting November 21, 2022.  

(CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Monday, November 21, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Ward 1 Director Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director Laney Harris, 

Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, Ward 5 Director Barbara Miner, and Ward 6 Director Jeff Hart. 

ALSO, PRESENT: City Manager E. Jay Ellington, City Attorney George Matteson, City Clerk 

Heather Soyars and Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens. 

ABSENT:  Assistant Mayor Ward 3 Steven Hollibush. 

Invocation given by Mayor Brown. 

Pledge of Allegiance led by Central Records and Communications Commander Doug Avery.  

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION  

Camile Moseley, 4835 Old Clay Pit Road, said she was concerned about the flooding around her 

home and would like something done to prevent it.  She also said there had been dumping in her 

neighborhood, and it needed to be cleaned up. 

CONSENT 

Director Hart made the motion to adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Director Roberts.  The 

motion carried and the following item was approved:  

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting November 7, 2022.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather 

Soyars 

REGULAR 

2. Resolution No. 2022-69 authorized the City Manager to enter into a contract with Stan 

Excavating Company for the demolition of the Regency House located at 110 E. Broad Street 

in Ward 2. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by 

Director Roberts.   

Voting Yea: Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director Miner and Director Hart. 

Voting Nay: Mayor Brown and Director Roberts. 



 

The motion carried 4-2 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

3. Resolution No. 2022-70 authorized the transfer of existing bonds from Cooper Tire & Rubber 

Company to Good Year Tire & Rubber Company. (ADMIN) Finance Director TyRhonda 

Henderson  

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by 

Director Roberts.   

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director Miner 

and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

4. Ordinance No. 33-2022 authorized the City Manager to enter into a service agreement with 

the Texarkana Chamber of Commerce for support services to include advertising and 

development of a mobile tour application. (ADMIN) City Manager Jay Ellington 

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated form made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Roberts.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director Miner, 

and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director Miner, 

and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director Miner, 

and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director Miner, 

and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct vote of 

the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

Motion to enact the emergency clause made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Roberts. 



 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against the emergency clause. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director Miner, 

and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the emergency clause enacted. 

 

5. Ordinance No. 34-2022 authorized the City Manager to enter into a service agreement with 

Main Street Texarkana for support services to include the 2022 Christmas Parade, Broad 

Street lighting upgrades and landscape enhancements. (ADMIN) City Manager Jay Ellington 

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated form made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Miner.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director Miner, 

and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Roberts, Seconded by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director Miner, 

and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director Miner, 

and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 6-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director Miner, 

and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct vote of 

the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

Motion to enact the emergency clause made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Roberts. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against the emergency clause. 

No one came forward. 



 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director Miner, 

and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 6-0 and the Mayor declared the emergency clause enacted. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

Director Harris said he spoke with a representative at SWEPCO, and they would be cutting tree 

limbs off power lines through the end of January.  He also asked why the grass he called about this 

summer near the creeks and right-of-way, had not been mowed. 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

City Manager E. Jay Ellington asked Central Records and Communications Commander Doug 

Avery to speak before the Board. 

Central Records and Communications Commander Doug Avery said after 34 years of service, it 

was time for him to go home to spend time with his family.  He thanked the City for allowing him 

to serve the citizens of the community and if anyone were to need him, please call.  

The City Manager gave the following report: 

He thanked the Solid Waste Committee for meeting today to discuss the hauler contacts. 

He said he hoped to present a performance-based contract with AR-TX REDI to the Board by the 

end of the year.  The two operational contracts with Crossties and 1894, would hopefully be 

presented to the Board next year.  

The budget workshop would be November 29, 2022, at 4:00 PM. 

He said he would be out of the office December 1, 2022 – December 10, 2022. 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  Tuesday, December 6, 2022 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Miner. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Brewer, Director Miner 

and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 6-0 and the meeting adjourned at 6:45 PM. 

APPROVED this the 6th day of December 2022. 

 

____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution approving the reimbursement of $22,000.00 to the 

Texarkana Regional Airport from American Rescue Act Funds. (FIN) 

Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson 

AGENDA DATE: 12/6/2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department 

PREPARED BY: TyRhonda Henderson, Finance Director  

REQUEST: N/A 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The American Rescue Act Fund was approved by the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas Board of Directors on December 20, 2021 with resolution 

2021-65. This budget allocated $972,090 in 2021 and the remaining 

$656,637 in 2022. Of the total $1,628,727, $220,286.30 has been spent. 

The purpose of this agenda item is to approve the reimbursement of 

$22,000.00 to the Texarkana Regional Airport for engineering services 

in connection with the Landside Development. As this would be 

considered a general governmental service, it is eligible for 

reimbursement due to the City receiving less than $10 million from the 

American Rescue Plan Act.     

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $22,000.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $22,000.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend approval 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and invoice 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, allocated American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds remain available 

for use in accordance with applicable law and restriction; and 

WHEREAS, of the total ARPA funds allocated, $1,628,727.00, the total spent to 

date is $220,286.30; and 

WHEREAS, an eligible use of a portion of such funds is to reimburse the Airport 

Authority for $22,000.00, incurred in connection with Landslide Development; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval;     

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the reimbursement described herein is approved and, further, 

all applicable City budgets are appropriately amended.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 6th day of December, 2022. 

 

 

      

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

      

George Matteson, City Attorney 

 

 

 







 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance authorizing the issuance and sale of a General 

Revenues Note, Series 2022, by the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, in the 

principal amount of $650,000. (FIN) Finance Director TyRhonda 

Henderson  

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a 

separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a 

two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

AGENDA DATE: December 6, 2022 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department 

PREPARED BY: TyRhonda Henderson, Finance Director  

REQUEST: N/A 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yes 

SUMMARY: On November 7, 2022, the Board of Directors approved resolution 2022-

66 authorizing the City Manager to seek proposals for Amendment 78 

financing of capital improvements for the Front Street Plaza Project in 

the amount of $650,000. According to state statute, an ordinance must 

be adopted by the Board of Directors to finalize the issuance, sale, and 

terms of the note. The low bid was submitted by Commercial National 

Bank with an interest rate of 3.47%. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend approval 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance and Bids  

 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

AN ORDINANCE PURSUANT TO THE 

AUTHORITY OF AMENDMENT 78 TO THE 

ARKANSAS CONSTITUTION AND THE LAWS OF 

THE STATE OF ARKANSAS AUTHORIZING THE 

INCURRENCE $650,000.00 OF INDEBTEDNESS 

TO FINANCE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS UPON 

THE FRONT STREET PLAZA PROJECT; 

PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT OF AMOUNTS 

COMING DUE THEREUNDER; PRESCRIBING 

OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO; AND 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the continued development of the Front Street Plaza 

project in downtown Texarkana it is necessary to incur indebtedness in the amount of 

$650,000.00 for capital improvements upon such project area; and, 

WHEREAS, upon request, a low bid was submitted by Commercial National Bank of 

Texarkana (“CNB”), pursuant to which CNB proposed to extend such credit for a term of five 

(5) years at an annual percentage rate of 3.47%, with payments of principal and interest 

coming due and payable annually in the amount of approximately $143,840.60+/-; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend incurring such indebtedness on such 

terms for the purposes stated, in accordance with Amendment 78 to the Arkansas Constitution 

and the laws of the State of Arkansas;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS, THAT: 

 

Section 1. The bid of Commercial National Bank of Texarkana described above for the 

extension of credit in the amount of Six Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars to finance capital 

improvements upon the Front Street Plaza Project for a term of five (5) years at annual 

percentage rate of 3.47%, with annual payments of principal and interest over the term of the 

loan. 



 

Section 2. The Mayor, City Clerk, City Manager, and Finance Director are hereby 

authorized to take, or cause to be taken, all action necessary to enter into the indebtedness 

described above and execute all required contracts and documents for that purpose. 

 

Section 3. Board of Directors hereby finds and declares that the expected useful life of 

the capital improvements financed pursuant to the terms here to be more than one year. 

 

Section 4. The funding for satisfaction of the payments, as the same come due, shall be 

paid by and from budgeted or available funds.   

 

Section 5.  The City represents, warrants, and covenants that the aggregate principal 

amount of short-term financing obligations incurred by the City pursuant to Amendment 78 

to the Arkansas Constitution, including that represented by the indebtedness described above, 

does not exceed five percent of the assessed value of taxable property located within the City, 

as determined by the last tax assessment completed before the last obligation was incurred by 

the City. 

 

Section 6. Under the authority of the Constitution and laws of the State of Arkansas, 

including particularly Amendment 78 to the Arkansas Constitution, financing represented by 

the described above for the purpose of said capital improvements upon the Front Street Plaza 

Project is hereby authorized. 

 

Section 7. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable, and if 

any provision shall for any reason be held illegal or invalid, it shall not affect the validity of 

the remainder of the Ordinance. 

 

Section 8. All ordinances or resolutions or parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 

with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

Section 9. This Ordinance shall not create any right of any kind, and no right of any kind 

shall arise hereunder pursuant to it, until the indebtedness described herein shall be signed on 

behalf of the City and delivered. 

 

Section 10.  Nothing contained in this Ordinance is intended, nor shall be deemed to be 

waiver of any applicable policy, local ordinance, or statutory requirement as relates to the use 

of the funds acquired hereunder or expenditure of the same.  

 

Section 11. It is hereby ascertained and declared that bid conditions and potential interest 

rate changes necessitate the immediate acceptance of the bid and, as follows, entry into the 

corresponding indebtedness documentation as soon as reasonably possible and to alleviate 

immediate hazards to the health, safety, and welfare of the City, its inhabitants, and their 

property, it is, therefore, declared that an emergency exists and this Ordinance being necessary 

for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety shall take effect and be 

enforced from and after its passage. 



 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 6th day of December, 2022. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 


















	Top
	1.	Employee Service Awards
	item_1_12062022_ccd_employee service awards

	2.	Minutes
	item_12062022_ccd_minutes
	item_2_ccd_11212022_minutes

	3.	Airport Reimbursement from ARPA Funds
	item_12062022_fin_Airport Reimbursement from ARPA Funds (1)
	item_3_Airport_Resolution
	item_12062022_fin_Airport Reimbursement from ARPA Funds

	4.	amendment 78 note
	item_4_12062022_fin_agenda_Amendment 78 note for Front Street Plaza Project
	item_4_12062022_fin_Ordinance_Amendment 78
	item_12062022_fin_CNB Bid_Front Street Plaza Project
	item_12062022_fin_Farmers Bid_Front Street Plaza Project
	item_4_12062022_fin_Regions Bid_Front Street Plaza Project

	Bottom

